
Kelso City Council Agenda 
Regular Meeting, 6:00 pm 

April 15, 2014 
City Hall, Council Chambers 

203 South Pacific 
Kelso, WA  98626 

 
 

                                **Special accommodations for the handicapped and hearing impaired are available 
 by special arrangement through the City Clerk’s Office at 360-423-0900** 

 
 
 
 
Invocation: 

      Chaplain Doug Fields, Cowlitz County Chaplaincy 
  

 
Roll Call to Council Members: 

 
 
1. Approve Minutes: 

1.1. April 1, 2014 – Regular Meeting 
 
 
2. Proclamations: 

2.1. Mental Health Month 
2.2. National Library Week 
 
 

3. Public Hearing: 
3.1. 2014 HOME Project Allocations 

 
 
4. Presentations: 

4.1. Port of Longview 
 
 
5. Consent Items: 

5.1. Contract Closeout 
5.1.1. Former Salvage Yard Soil Remediation 

5.2. Contract Closeout 
5.2.1. Sunrise Waterline Replacement 

5.3. Audit of Accounts 
 
 

6. Citizen Business: 



Kelso City Council Agenda 
Regular Meeting, 6:00 pm 

April 15, 2014 
City Hall, Council Chambers 

203 South Pacific 
Kelso, WA  98626 

 
 

 
7. Council Business: 

7.1. Police Vehicle Purchase Discussion 
7.2. Amendment to City Manager Employment Agreement 
7.3. Amendment to City of Longview Building Code/Inspection & Plans 

Examinations Services Interlocal Agreement 
 
 
8. Action/Motion Items: 

8.1. Ordinance, 2nd Reading 
8.1.1. Liability Insurance Coverage Code Amendment 

 
 

Other Items: 
• City Manager Report 
• Staff/Dept Head Reports 
• Council Reports 
• Other Business 
• Executive Session 



KELSO CITY COUNCIL                                                                             April 1, 2014 
6:00 P.M.                                                                                       REGULAR MEETING 
 
Pastor Chris Davis, Abundant Life of the Nazarene Church, gave the invocation.  Mayor 
David Futcher led the flag salute.  The Regular Meeting of the Kelso City Council was 
called to order by Mayor David Futcher.  Councilmembers in attendance were:  Futcher, 
Myers, Schimmel and Roberson.  Councilmembers McDaniel and Franklin were absent.  
  
Minutes:  Upon motion by Councilmember Myers, seconded by Councilmember 
Schimmel, ‘Approve the Minutes of the 3/18/14 Regular Meeting,’ motion carried, all 
voting yes. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS: 
 
Mayor Futcher read a proclamation declaring the week of April 6th – 12th, as “Crime 
Victims’ Rights Week” in the City of Kelso. Emergency Support Shelter Crime Victims 
Advocate Estrella Barron accepted the proclamation. 
 
Mayor Futcher read a proclamation declaring April 2014, as “Sexual Assault Awareness 
in Action Month” in the City of Kelso.  Emergency Support Shelter Sexual Assault 
Advocate Hazel Faul accepted the proclamation.  
 
PRESENTATIONS: 
 
2013 Library Annual Report:  Library Manager Cindy Donaldson provided a 
presentation regarding the activities, events, partnerships and patron statistics for the last 
year.   
 
2013 Annual Financial Report:  Finance Director Brian Butterfield provided an 
overview of the City’s financial highlights for 2013. 
 
COUNCIL BUSINESS: 
 
Cowlitz County Mental Health Court Services Interlocal Agreement:  Upon motion 
by Councilmember Roberson, seconded by Councilmember Myers, ‘Approve the Mental 
Health Court Services Interlocal Agreement,’ motion carried, all voting yes. 
 
MOTION ITEMS:         
 
Ordinance No. (1st Reading) – Liability Insurance Coverage Code Amendment:  The 
Deputy Clerk read the proposed ordinance by title only.  Upon motion by 
Councilmember Schimmel, seconded by Councilmember Myers, ‘Pass on 1st reading, 
‘AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KELSO AMENDING THE KELSO 
MUNICIPAL CODE TO UPDATE REQUIREMENTS FOR INSURANCE 
ASSOCIATED WITH CITY PROGRAMS,’ motion passed, all voting yes. 
 



Kelso City Council                               -2-                                    4/1/14 Regular Meeting 
 
Resolution No. 14-1113 – 2014-2019 Capital Improvement Program Amendment:  
The Deputy Clerk read the proposed resolution by title only.  Upon motion by 
Councilmember Roberson, seconded by Councilmember Archer, ‘Pass Resolution No.14-
1113, ‘A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KELSO 
RELATED TO CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS AND ESTABLISHING THE CITY’S 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM FOR THE PERIOD OF 2014-2019,’ motion 
passed, all voting yes. 
  
WALK ON ITEMS: 
 
Resolution No. 14-1114 – Master Fee Schedule Amendment:  The Deputy Clerk read 
the proposed resolution by title only.  Upon motion by Councilmember Schimmel, 
seconded by Councilmember Myers, ‘Pass Resolution No.14-1114, ‘A RESOLUTION 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KELSO, WASHINGTON, AMENDING 
THE CITY’S MASTER FEE SCHEDULE,’ motion passed, all voting yes. 
 
Kelso Housing Authority Re-Appointment – Betty Wilson, 5 year Term:  With 
consensus of the Council, Mayor Futcher made the appointment.   
 
STAFF COMMENTS: 
 
Finance Director Brian Butterfield:  Commented that the document recording fees 
accumulated amount for 2013 and 2014 was $17,630.  He asked Council if they prefer to 
award the amount this year or to allow the amount to increase by rolling it over to another 
year. Council gave direction to continue rolling the amount of the document recording 
fees over until the accumulated amount is at least $40,000.   
 
Community Development Director/City Engineer Mike Kardas:  Provided an update 
on the West Main Realignment Project. 
 
COUNCIL REPORTS: 
 
Rick Roberson:  1) Provided an update on the South Kelso Neighborhood Association.  
2) He reminded his fellow councilmembers that their financial reports need to be filed 
with the Public Disclosure Commission by April 15, 2014. 
 
Gary Archer:   No report. 
 
Dan Myers:  Announced that Cowlitz Wahkiakum Council of Governments Executive 
Director Scott Patterson has submitted his resignation effective April 15, 2014. 
 
Gary Schimmel:  No report.  
 
David Futcher:   No report. 



Kelso City Council                               -3-                                    4/1/14 Regular Meeting 
 
There being no further business, Mayor Futcher adjourned the meeting at 7:06 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
                                 MAYOR 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
                            CITY CLERK 



Proclamation 
 

Mental Health Month 
May 2014 

 
WHEREAS, mental health is essential to everyone’s overall health and well-being; and 
WHEREAS addressing early the complex mental health needs of children, youth, and families today 

is fundamental to the future of Cowlitz County; and 
WHEREAS, mental health problems can affect all areas of a person’s life, including school, home 

and work; and 
WHEREAS, mental health problems will strike one in five adults and children each year regardless 

of age, gender, race, ethnicity, religion or economic status; and 
WHEREAS, over 38,000 American lives are lost each year to suicide; and 
WHEREAS, all Americans – from combat veterans to hurricane victims – are vulnerable to chronic 

mental health problems associated with trauma and can benefit greatly from early identification and 
treatment; and 

WHEREAS, people can recover from mental illness and lead full, productive lives in the community; 
and 

WHEREAS, an estimated two-thirds of adults and young people with mental health problems go 
without the help they need; and 

WHEREAS, each business, school, government agency, healthcare provider, organization and citizen 
bares the burden of mental health problems and has a responsibility to promote mental wellness. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, I, David Futcher, Mayor of the City of Kelso, do hereby proclaim the 
month of May to be 
 

“Mental Health Month” 
 

in the City of Kelso and call upon the citizens of Kelso, government agencies, public and private 
institutions, businesses and schools to recommit our community to increasing awareness and understanding of 
mental health and the need for appropriate and accessible services for all people with mental illness. 

 
In witness whereof, I have hereunto set 
my hand and caused the seal of the City of 
Kelso to be affixed this 15th day of April 
2014. 

 
  

        
            David Futcher, Mayor  

   



Proclamation 
National Library Week  

April 13 – 19, 2014 
 
WHEREAS, libraries help lives change in their communities, campuses and schools; 
WHEREAS; librarians work to meet the changing needs of their communities, including providing 

resources for everyone and bringing services outside of library walls; 

WHEREAS, libraries and librarians bring together community members to enrich and shape the 
community and address local issues; 

WHEREAS, librarians are trained, tech-savvy professionals, providing technology training and 
access to downloadable content like e-books;  

WHEREAS, libraries offer programs to meet community needs, providing residents with resume 
writing classes, 24/7 homework help and financial planning services to teens applying for student loans to 
older adults planning their retirement; 

WHEREAS, libraries continuously grow and evolve in how they provide for the needs of every 
member of their communities;  

WHEREAS, libraries, librarians, library workers and supporters across America are celebrating 
National Library Week. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that I, David Futcher, Mayor of the City of Kelso, do hereby 
proclaim the week of April 13-19, 2014 to be 

 

“National Library Week”  
 
I encourage all residents to visit the library this week to take advantage of the wonderful library 

resources available at your library. Lives change at your library. 
 
 
       In witness whereof, I have hereunto set 
       my hand and caused the seal of the City of  
       Kelso to be affixed this 15th day of April   
       2014. 
 
 
 
             
                   David Futcher, Mayor  



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:    
 
Public Hearing for the Kelso HOME 2014 
Project allocation 
 
  
 
 
PRESENTED BY: 
Steve Taylor 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: Community Development  
 
For Agenda of:  April 15, 2014   
 
Cost of Item:   
 
City Manager:  Steve Taylor   
 

 

AGENDA ITEM ATTACHMENTS:    
2014 HOME Project Design under separate cover 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
This Public Hearing will be held to review and consider HOME Program affordable housing projects submitted 
for funding and receive public comment for allocations.  HOME funding is provided through the Federal 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) annually to the Longview-Kelso HOME Consortium.  
The City of Longview acts as the lead agency for the Consortium. 
 
One (1) HOME project application was recieved.  Additionally, the Lower Columbia Community Action 
Program has requested a 5% CHDO (Community Housing and Development Organization) Operating Cost 
allocation which both the Longview and Kelso Councils must approve as HOME Longview-Kelso Consortium 
partners.  
 
2014 Kelso HOME Project Summaries      Amount Available:   $46,718.53                   Amount 
Requested:   $45,000 
 
Foundation for the Challenged Home – Develop one group home for four (4) developmentally disabled 
residents. Sponsored through Life Works.          $45,000 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
Move to allocate HOME dollars for the above noted project in the amount of $45,000 dollars and 5% for CHDO 
operating costs to Lower Columbia Community Action Program. 
 



Notice of Public Hearing 
City of Kelso 2014 HOME Project Allocations 

Tuesday, April 15, 2014 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a public hearing will be held by the City Council, City of Kelso, 
Kelso City Hall, 203 S. Pacific Ave, Kelso, Washington, at 6:00 p.m., April 15, 2014, to consider projects 
for 2014 funding under the HOME program within the Kelso City limits. 
 
The purpose of the Public Hearing is to present project design proposals for competitive funding of low-
income housing projects and to hear public comment, particularly from low-income persons or groups 
regarding these proposed projects.  The HOME Program is funded by the Federal Department of Housing 
and Urban Development through the Longview-Kelso HOME Consortium. 
 
Consortium Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) Request for Funding 
CHDO 5% Operating Costs 
To support the Consortium’s Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) Lower Columbia 
Community Action Program (Housing and Energy Division) operating and capacity building costs 
including salaries and benefits, training, department pro-rated cost allocations (rent, phone,  etc.), 
equipment, materials, supplies and tools.  The amount will be 5% of the 2013 HOME allocation. 
Lower Columbia Community Action Program   $13,348.15  
Requires approval from Consortium Partners (Longview and Kelso City Councils) 
 
2014 Kelso HOME Project Summaries   
Amount Available:   $46,718.53  Amount Requested:   $45,000 
 
Foundation for the Challenged Kelso– Develop one group home for 4 developmentally disabled 
residents. Life Works sponsored through Foundation for the Challenged    $45,000 
 
Anyone interested may appear and be heard in regard to this public hearing at the above-mentioned time 
and place.  The City Hall is accessible for persons with disabilities.  Please let us know 24 hours in 
advance if you will need any special accommodations to attend the meeting.  For further information, or 
to review project proposals, visit the Kelso City Clerk or go on the web 
at  http://www.mylongview.com/communitydev/HOME_program.html.  
 
Dated at Kelso, Washington, this 1st day of April, 2014 
        THE CITY OF KELSO 
 
        ________________________ 
        Brian Butterfield, City Clerk 
 
               
Published: April,   2014   Do Not Publish Below this Line 
Posted:  Kelso City Hall 
  Kelso Public Library 
  Kelso Post Office 
 
cc:  City Manager 
  Daily News 
  Community Development Department 
 

http://www.mylongview.com/communitydev/HOME_program.html




































AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:    
 
Contract Closeout for: 
Former Salvage Yard Soil Remediation 
 
 
PRESENTED BY: 
Michael Kardas, P.E. 
Community Development Director / City Engineer 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Dept. of Origin: Community Development_______ 
 
For Agenda of:  April 15, 2014   
 
Cost of Item: $ 318,868.69   
 
City Manager:  Steve Taylor   
 

 

AGENDA ITEM ATTACHMENTS:    
 
Final Reconciliation 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
In 2004, Department of Ecology listed the Terry’s Salvage site on the State’s Hazardous Sites List.  They later 
ceased operation at this location.  In 2010-2011 the City used Neighborhood Stabilization Program Grant funds 
to demolish an abandoned building and remove scrap metal.  Soil contamination was discovered during the site 
cleanup process.   
 
This project was the response of the discovery of the soil contamination.  The contract removed and disposed of 
approximately the top two to three feet of existing soil.  The site was graded with new topsoil and seeded. 
 
Work began on this project September 30, 2013 and was completed on November 11, 2013. 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
Original Contract Amount: $323,541.80 
Approved Change Orders: $46,929.11 
Quantity Underrun:  $(51,602.21) 
Retainage Amount:  $14,762.44 
Final Contract Amount: $318,868.69 
Change in Contract Amount: $(4,673.11) 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
Staff recommend approving the reconciliation and accepting this project as complete.  
 
 
 





AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:    
 
Closeout of Sunrise St. Waterline Replacement 
Project No. 591303 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
Michael Kardas, P.E. 
Community Development Director / City Engineer 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Dept. of Origin: Public Works - Engineering  
 
For Agenda of:  April 15, 2014   
 
Cost of Item:   $128,241.88   
 
City Manager:  Steve Taylor   
 

 

AGENDA ITEM ATTACHEMENTS:    
 
Final Reconciliation 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
This contract provided for waterline distribution improvements on the 1200 and 1300 block of Sunrise Street in 
the City of Kelso. The major work elements being 600 LF of ductile iron water distribution pipe, two fire 
hydrants, one blow-off assembly, new residential water service connections, one catch basin, 50 LF of 12” 
HDPE and 83 tons of new HMA pavement restoration. 
 
Work on this project began on September 30, 2013 and ended on October 26, 2013 
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
Original Contract Amount: $139,884.84 
Approved Change Orders: $3,903.37 
Quantity Underrun:  $(15,546.34) 
Retainage Amount:  $5,937.12 
Final Contract Amount: $128,241.88 
Change in Contract Amount: $(11,642.96) 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
Staff recommend approving the reconciliation and accepting this project as complete.  
 
 
 
 





AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:  Police Vehicle Purchase 
Discussion. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
Steve Taylor 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: City Council   
 
For Agenda of: April 15, 2014  
 
Originator: ________Steve Taylor    
 
 
 
City Attorney:      Janean Parker 
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 

Agenda Item Attachments:    
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
The Police Department is requesting the purchase of a 2014 Dodge Charger patrol vehicle and a 2014 Ford 
SUV interceptor (will serve as Captain admin/response vehicle) to replace high mileage vehicles.  Prior to the 
recession, the Police Department would typically acquire two to three vehicles annually, but budget cuts and 
FTE reduction has allowed the Department to temporarily reduce the acquisitions to one vehicle per year.  
Median mileage for the fleet is over 70,000 per vehicle with three emergency vehicles over the 100,000 mile 
mark.  One new patrol vehicle already provided for in the 2014 budget was purchased earlier this year. 
 
The additional vehicles were not budgeted for 2014 due to uncertainty in status of the 2013 general fund 
ending balance.  The 2013 surplus was great enough to provide an opportunity to invest in new equipment 
and vehicles without adding significant recurring expenses.  The total for the two vehicles is estimated at 
$71,000 in accordance with the 2014 Washington State bid.  Five vehicles are anticipated to be surplused for 
trade-in, with the proceeds to be used to offset the cost of the new vehicles.   
 
A budget amendment is not necessary at this time as the general fund has capacity to absorb the additional 
expenditures at this point in the fiscal year; however, staff is requesting Council consensus to approve these 
purchases outside of the regular budget process. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Staff is seeking Council consensus to purchase two additional Police Department vehicles for general 
operations in 2014. 



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:  Amendment to City 
Manager Employment Agreement. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
Mayor David Futcher 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: City Council   
 
For Agenda of: April 15, 2014  
 
Originator: ________David Futcher    
 
 
 
City Attorney:      Janean Parker 
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 

Agenda Item Attachments:    
Amendment No. 2 to City Manager Employment Agreement 
City Manager Evaluation Final Report 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
 
The City’s employment agreement with the City Manager allows for the reimbursement of personal 
vehicle mileage in accordance with the Kelso Employee Handbook and established personnel policies.  
The official vehicle the City has provided for the Manager’s use is proposed to be transferred to the 
Police Department to replace a detective’s vehicle that has reached the end of its useful life in lieu of 
purchasing a new vehicle for the department.  The proposed amendment to the Manager’s 
employment agreement acknowledges the need for him to have exclusive and unrestricted use of a 
vehicle in the course of business and would authorize a monthly $300.00 allowance for the use and 
maintenance of his personal vehicle on City business within Cowlitz County.   
 
Additionally, the City is reviewing its policies for the provision and use of mobile phone and data 
devices for eligible City employees.  The “BYOD” (Bring Your Own Device) concept is an accepted and 
established concept in the public and private sectors.  The concept allows for the issuance of stipends 
to employees to purchase or otherwise supplement the purchase of personal mobile phones and data 
services which can be used in the course of City business.  Implementation of this policy would 
reduce the time and expense of administering phone/data plans and maintaining inventory 
accountability.  The proposed amendment to the employment agreement authorizes a monthly 
$80.00 allowance for the Manager to secure adequate phone and data services that ensure his 
availability and accessibility both during and after regular business hours.  A “not-to-exceed” 
hardware allowance of $200 every two years is also authorized.   
 



All other terms of the Employment Agreement as amended will remain in effect. 
 
 
OPTIONS: 

1)  Move to approve Amendment No. 2 to the City Manager Employment Agreement. 
2)  Do not approve the amendment. 
3)  Negotiate alternatives to the proposed amendment. 



Page 1 of 2 

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 
STEPHEN A. TAYLOR 

 
 
THE AGREEMENT, made and entered into on the 1st day of September, 2012, by and between 

the City of Kelso, Washington, a municipal corporation, hereinafter called ’Employer’, and Stephen A. 
Taylor, hereinafter called ‘Employee’, is hereby amended as follows: 
 

 
Section 7. Automobile 
 

The Employee is entitled to receive mileage allowance in accordance with City of Kelso policy 
and procedures. 
 
 
Section 7.  Transportation for City Business 
 
Employee’s duties require that he shall have the exclusive and unrestricted use of an automobile during 
his employment.  Employee shall provide his own automobile for customary business travel within 
Cowlitz County.  Employer agrees to pay Employee a monthly automobile allowance of Three Hundred 
Dollars ($300), made available on the last day of each month. Employee agrees to generally use his 
vehicle on City business, excepting when and if his vehicle is temporarily unavailable or unsuitable for 
City business or the travel being conducted. When the Employee uses his vehicle for City business 
travel outside Cowlitz County, Employer shall reimburse Employee at the maximum rate per mile 
provided in accordance with Internal Revenue Service regulations then in effect. 
 
 
Section 16.  Other Terms and Conditions of Employment 
 

4. Employee’s duties require that he be accessible by telephone and electronic mail during regular 
hours and after hours both within his primary office location and offsite.  Employer agrees to pay 
Employee a monthly allowance of Eighty Dollars ($80), made available on the last day of each 
month, for mobile telephone and data services.  Additionally, Employer agrees to reimburse 
Employee up to Two Hundred Dollars ($200) once every twenty-four (24) months for the 
purchase of mobile phone hardware compatible with Employee’s business needs.  

 
 
All other terms and conditions of the Agreement dated September 1st, 2012, and as subsequently 
amended, shall remain in full effect. 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS AMENDMENT: The 1st day of May, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Stephen A. Taylor Employment Agreement 
 

Page 2 of 2 

EMPLOYER: EMPLOYEE: 
City Council 
 

 
______________________________                                   _______________________________ 
David Futcher, Mayor Stephen A. Taylor  
 
Date:  _________________________ Date:__________________________ 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ ______________________________ 
Brian Butterfield, Clerk Treasurer City Attorney 







AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE: Amendment to the 
Interlocal Agreement for Building 
Services – City of Longview 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
Steve Taylor 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: City Manager   
 
For Agenda of: April 15, 2014  
 
Originator: Steve Taylor   
 
 
 
City Attorney:     Janean Parker  
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 

Agenda Item Attachments:    
Interlocal Agreement – City of Longview Building & Planning Services 
 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
On December 3, 2013 the City entered into an Interlocal agreement with the City of Longview 
establishing an on-call, ongoing relationship with Longview to conduct plan review, building code 
enforcement, and inspections. At this time the City is in need of an expanded scope of services to 
include current planning sevices. The expanded services are contained in section 6 of the new 
agreement and include “site plan review, zoning code review and interpretation, zone change 
requests, SEPA review (threshold determination, checklist review, and determination preparation), 
shorelines development permit and critical areas review for development applications received by the 
City.” The hourly rates for this service are included in Exhibit A to the agreement. 
  
If approved by the Kelso City Council, Longview will take up the agreement for consideration on April 
24th .  Services can be performed under the agreement immediately upon adoption by the legislative 
bodies of both entities. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
 
Move to approve the amendment to Interlocal Agreement with the City of Longview for Building & 
Planning Services. 



 
 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITIES OF LONGVIEW & KELSO, WASHINGTON 

RELATING TO BUILDING CODE ADMINISTRATION, PLANNING, PLANS 
EXAMINATION, & BUILDING INSPECTION SERVICES 

 
 
 

THIS   INTERLOCAL   AGREEMENT,   hereinafter   "Agreement",   is entered into 
between the CITY OF LONGVIEW, hereinafter "Longview", and the CITY OF KELSO,  
hereinafter "Kelso". 

 
WHEREAS,  Kelso  and  Longview  are public  agencies  as defined  by Ch. 39.34 

of the Revised Code of Washington  ("RCW"), and are authorized to enter into 
interlocal  agreements on the basis of mutual advantage and thereby to provide 
services and facilities  in the manner and pursuant to forms of governmental 
organization that will accord  best  with  geographic,  economic,  population,  and  other  
factors  influencing  the needs of local communities; and 

 
WHEREAS,   Longview's   Community   Development   Department   maintains  

building and planning divisions that regularly enforces and administers the building 
code requirements, reviews building permit applications, planning actions, and conducts 
building inspections; and 

 
WHEREAS, Kelso desires to utilize the resources of Longview to assist Kelso   in 

performing   building   code   administration,   plan   review, current planning and zoning 
review, and building inspection; and 

 
WHEREAS, Kelso has agreed to compensate Longview for performing these 

services; and 
 

NOW THEREFORE,   in consideration   of the terms and provisions   contained 
herein, it is agreed between Kelso and Longview as follows: 

 
1.   Purpose.    It  is  the  purpose   of  this  Agreement  to  establish   the  framework, 

roles, and responsibilities in order to have  Longview  perform  building code 
administration, plan review, current planning and zoning review, and inspection 
services for the City of Kelso for payment. 

 
2.   Services-Generally. 

 
2.1.      Approval and Priority.   All  services  provided  by  Longview  to 

Kelso, as detailed in this Agreement, will be performed  by Longview's 
Community Development staff (“Longview Staff”) as approved and directed by 
Longview's Community  Development Director (the "Longview Director'') or 
Longview's  Building Official ("Longview Building  Official")  and subsequent  to 
regularly  assigned  duties  for Longview staff. 



 
 

 
2.2  Joint Procedures.  The Community Development Directors for each 

party shall develop mutually agreeable procedures for the notification, 
transmittal, review, and communication regarding the services performed 
under this agreement.  The Directors will periodically review these procedures 
and confer as needed to address any issues that arise in the administration of 
this Agreement.  In the event of a dispute regarding the interpretation, 
application, or performance of these procedures or this agreement, the City 
Managers of each party shall meet to attempt to resolve the dispute prior to 
the dispute resolution process set out in Paragraph 12.2 

 
3.  Building Official Services. The Kelso Community Development Director (“Kelso 

Director”) shall perform the duties of Kelso Building Official to enforce and administer 
the provisions of the Kelso building code and render interpretations of the code in 
accordance with the adopted construction codes. 

 
3.1 Kelso’s Building and Planning staff will perform permit intake, application 

administration and monitoring, and permit issuance for Kelso. 
3.2 Upon request, Longview will provide Building Official services to Kelso to assist 

the Kelso Building Official in accordance with the current construction codes 
as adopted and amended by the State of Washington and Kelso. 

3.3 Longview’s Staff will perform building plan review and inspections, and/or 
building code enforcement duties upon request by Kelso and pursuant to the 
procedures provided in this Agreement. 

 
4.   Building Plan Review Services.  Longview Staff will review plans for code compliance 

upon request and in accordance with the current construction codes as adopted and 
amended by the State of Washington and Kelso. 

 
4.1 Kelso shall submit requests for any plan review services to the Longview 

Director, or his/her designee. 
4.2 Plans shall be reviewed and returned to the applicant within the timeframes 

established for such review by Kelso’s applicable municipal code sections. 
4.3 If approved, Longview’s Staff will indicate in writing that the drawings have 

been reviewed for code compliance.  Approved sets of plans shall be returned 
to Kelso for issuance. 

4.4 Longview’s Director will assign appropriate staff to attend meetings as 
requested by Kelso, such as pre-application meetings and pre-submission 
meetings. 

5.  Building Inspection Services.   Longview Staff shall perform building inspections, including 
building, plumbing, and mechanical inspections, upon request.  The governing codes used for 



 
 

inspection shall be those adopted by Kelso within Chapter 15.03 of the Kelso Municipal Code 
as amended.  Inspections will be performed according to the regular inspection schedule set 
by the Longview Director in coordination with the Kelso Director.  Procedures shall be 
established and agreed upon by both parties for 1) the notification of Longview’s designated 
staff of inspections waiting to be scheduled, 2) the regular conduct and completion of 
building inspections, and 3) the notification of Kelso staff of inspection status and disposition. 

6.  Current Planning Services.  Longview Staff shall perform current planning services, upon 
request, including site plan review, zoning code review and interpretation, zone change 
requests, SEPA review (threshold determination, checklist review, and determination 
preparation), shorelines development permit and critical areas review for development 
applications received by the City.  The services shall be performed in coordination with City 
staff and all determinations shall be approved and issued by the Kelso Director.  Procedures 
shall be established and agreed upon by both parties for 1) the notification of Longview’s 
designated staff of applications and projects waiting for review, 2) the regular conduct and 
completion of current planning review, and 3) the notification of Kelso staff of review status 
and recommended actions. 

 
7.  Term of Agreement.  This agreement shall become effective immediately upon 
ratification by both legislative bodies of the City of Kelso and the City of Longview and shall 
continue indefinitely unless terminated by either party upon it providing the other party with 
sixty (60) days advance written notice of such termination.  

 
 
8.   Payment  to  Longview.  In consideration of this Agreement and the services provided, 
Kelso shall pay Longview an hourly rate for all services provided by Longview under this 
Agreement, as listed in Exhibit A.  Payments for services rendered shall be made by Kelso 
each month within thirty (30) days of receipt of the billing statement from Longview.  

8.1 Billing Statement.  Longview shall submit a monthly statement to Kelso that shall 
contain the following: 

a. Date of service 
b. Hours of work 

 

8.2 Billing Statement Dispute.  In the event that there is a dispute regarding the 
amount of money owed by Kelso to Longview, staff shall make every effort to resolve 
such dispute.  In the event that there is no resolution to the dispute, the disputed 
amount shall be placed into the registry of the Cowlitz County Superior Court until 
the dispute is resolved by agreement of the parties or in a court with jurisdiction over 
the subject matter of the dispute. Kelso shall be required to pay Longview 



 
 

regardless of whether Kelso is paid or collects fees for the services that involved 
the work of Longview.  Payments for services rendered shall be made by Kelso 
each month within thirty (30) days of receipt of the billing statement from 
Longview. 

 
 

9.  Ownership of Property.   The parties to this Agreement do not contemplate the 
acquisition of any property to carry out the purposes of this Agreement. Any property 
owned by Kelso shall remain the property of Kelso, and any property owned by 
Longview shall remain the property of Longview. 

 
10. Independent  Contractor.   The Parties understand  and agree that Longview is 

acting hereunder as an independent contractor and shall maintain control of all 
Longview employees, including but not limited to hiring, firing, discipline, evaluation, 
and establishment of standards of performance thereof.   All Longview personnel 
rendering service hereunder shall be, for all purposes, employees of Longview, 
although they may from time to time act as officers of Kelso. 

 
11.  Termination. 

 
11.1.   Termination by Notice.   This Agreement may be terminated by 

either party upon it providing the other party with sixty (60) days advance written 
notice of such termination. 

 
11.2.   Termination by Mutual Written Agreement.   This Agreement may 

be terminated at any time by mutual written agreement of the parties.  
 

11.3.  Termination for Breach.  Longview may   terminate  this 
Agreement with fourteen (14) days advance written notice upon the failure of 
Kelso to make payments as required by this Agreement.  Kelso may terminate this 
Agreement upon fourteen (14) days advance written notice in the event Longview 
fails to provide services as required in this Agreement except disputes handled per 
Section 7.2. 

 
12. Indemnification and Hold  Harmless.   Longview agrees to defend, indemnify, and 

hold harmless Kelso, and each of its employees, officials, agents, and volunteers, from 
any and all losses, claims, liabilities, lawsuits, or legal judgments arising out of any 
negligent or tortious actions or inactions by Longview or any of its employees, officials, 
agents, or volunteers, while acting within the scope of the duties required by this 
Agreement.   All costs, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, court fees, 
mediation fees, arbitration fees, settlements, awards of compensation, awards of 
damages of every kind, etc., shall be paid by Longview or its insurer.  This provision 
shall survive the expiration of this Agreement. This provision shall also survive and 
remain in effect in the event that a court or other entity with jurisdiction determines 
that this interlocal Agreement is not enforceable. 

 



 
 

Kelso agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Longview and each of its 
employees, officials, agents, and volunteers from any and all losses, damages, claims, 
liabilities, lawsuits, or legal judgments arising out of any negligent or tortious actions 
or inactions by Kelso or any of its employees, officials, agents, or volunteers, while 
acting within the scope of the duties required by this Agreement. All costs, including 
but not limited to attorneys’ fees, court fees, mediation fees, arbitration fees, 
settlements, awards of compensation, awards of damages of every kind, etc., shall be 
paid by Kelso or its insurer.  This provision shall survive the expiration or earlier 
termination of this Agreement. This provision shall also survive and remain in 
effect in the event that a court or other entity with jurisdiction determines that this 
interlocal Agreement is not enforceable. 

 
IT IS FURTHER SPECIFICALLY AND EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD THAT THE 
INDEMNIFICATION PROVIDED HEREIN CONSTITUTES EACH PARTY'S WAIVER OF 
IMMUNITY UNDER INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE, TITLE 51 RCW, SOLELY TO CARRY OUT 
THE PURPOSES OF THIS INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE.   THE PARTIES FURTHER 
ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THEY HAVE MUTUALLY NEGOTIATED THIS WAIVER. 

 
The rights, duties and obligations set forth in this section 12 (Indemnification and 
Hold Harmless) survive termination or expiration of this agreement.  

 
 
13.  Miscellaneous. 

 
 

13.1.   Non-Waiver of Breach.   The failure of either party to insist upon 
strict performance of any of the covenants and agreements contained in this 
Agreement, or to exercise any option conferred by this Agreement in one or 
more instances, shall not be construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of those 
covenants, agreements or options, and the same shall be and remain in full 
force and effect. 

13.2.   Resolution of Disputes and Governing Law.   This Agreement shall 
be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Washington.  If the parties are unable to settle any dispute, difference or claim 
arising from the parties' performance of this Agreement, the exclusive means of 
resolving that dispute, difference or claim, shall only be by filing suit exclusively 
under the venue, rules and jurisdiction of the Cowlitz County Superior Court, 
Cowlitz County, Washington, unless the parties agree in writing to an alternative 
dispute resolution process.  In any claim or lawsuit for damages arising from the 
parties' performance of this Agreement, each party shall pay  all its legal costs 
and attorney's  fees  incurred  in  defending  or  bringing  such  claim  or  lawsuit,  
in addition to any other recovery or award provided by law; provided, 
however, nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to limit the parties' right 
to indemnification under this Agreement. 

 
13.3.   Assignment.  Any assignment of this Agreement by either party 



 
 

without the prior written consent of the non-assigning party shall be void.  If the 
non-assigning party gives its consent to any assignment, the terms of this 
Agreement shall continue in full force and effect and no further assignment shall 
be made without additional written consent. 

 
13.4.   Modification.  No waiver, alteration, or modification of any of the 

provisions of this Agreement shall be binding unless in writing and signed by a 
duly authorized representative of each party and subject to ratification by the 
legislative body of each City. 

 
13.5.   Compliance with Laws.   Each party agrees to comply with all local, 

federal and state laws, rules, and regulations that are now effective or in the 
future become applicable to this Agreement. 

 
13.6.  Entire Agreement.  The written terms and provisions of this 

Agreement, together with any exhibits attached hereto, shall supersede all prior 
communications, negotiations, representations or agreements, either verbal or 
written of any officer or other representative of each party, and such statements 
shall not be effective or be construed as entering into or forming a part of or 
altering in any manner this Agreement.  All of the exhibits are hereby made part of 
this Agreement. Should any of the language of any exhibits to this Agreement 
conflict with any language contained in this Agreement, the language of this 
document shall prevail. 

 
13.7.   Severability. If any section of this Agreement is adjudicated to be 

invalid, such action shall not affect the validity of any section not so adjudicated. 
 

13.8.   Interpretation.  The legal presumption that an ambiguous term of 
this Agreement should be interpreted against the party who prepared the 
Agreement shall not apply. 

 
13.9.   Notice.   All communications regarding  this Agreement shall be 

sent to the parties at the addresses listed on the signature page of the Agreement, 
unless notified to the contrary.  Any written notice hereunder shall become 
effective upon personal service or three (3) business days after the date of mailing 
by registered or certified mail, and shall be deemed sufficiently given if sent  to the 
addressee  at the address  stated  in this Agreement  or such  other address as 
may be hereafter specified in writing. 

 
 
  



 
 

 
IN  WITNESS,  the parties  below  execute  this  Agreement,  which  shall  

become effective on the last date entered below. 
 
 
Dated:  _____________________   Dated:  ____________________  

City of Longview City of Kelso 

By: ________________________   By: _______________________ 
 City Manager      City Manager 

 

Attest: _____________________   Attest: ____________________  
 City Clerk       City Clerk 

 

Approved as to form:     Approved as to form:     

___________________________   __________________________ 

 City Attorney       City Attorney  

        

 

 



 
 

A.          EXHIBIT A 
             
             BUILDING/PLANNING DEPARTMENT SERVICES FEES 

 
 

2013 Hourly Rates (includes veh/equip costs) 
Building Official ....69.00 
Field Inspector ....59.00 
Plans Examiner ....55.00 

 
Current Planner 
 
 
 
 

….61.00 

  

 
 
 

 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY SHEET 
Business of the City Council 
City of Kelso, Washington 

 
 
SUBJECT TITLE:  AN ORDINANCE OF THE 
CITY OF KELSO AMENDING THE KELSO 
MUNICIPAL CODE TO UPDATE 
REQUIREMENTS FOR INSURANCE 
ASSOCIATED WITH CITY PROGRAMS 
 
 
 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  
 
Steve Taylor 

 
Agenda Item:    
 
Dept. of Origin: City Manager   
 
For Agenda of:  April 15, 2014   
 
Originator:     
 
City Attorney:     Janean Parker  
 
City Manager:       Steve Taylor   
 

 

Agenda Item Attachments:    
Ordinance 
 
SUMMARY STATEMENT: 
The proposed ordinance is a housekeeping item identified by staff through a continued effort to 
update the City’s code. Currently the City has insurance requirements listed as conditions for 
obtaining a license to operate a dance hall, merchant patrol, private detective, private security 
operator, and taxicab business. The City’s insurance provider has advised removing these conditions 
in addition to increasing the amounts of insurance required for obtaining a fireworks permit and 
adding language that requires the City to be named as an additional insured party when procuring 
insurance for registering a dangerous dog. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  
Make a motion to approve the Ordinance on second reading removing insurance requirements in 
sections 5.20.120, 5.40.020, and 5.60.030 and amending insurance requirements in sections 
6.04.252 and 8.20.050 of the Kelso Municipal Code. 
 
 
 
 
 



 1 

ORDINANCE NO.  __________ 
 

 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF KELSO AMENDING THE 
KELSO MUNICIPAL CODE TO UPDATE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
INSURANCE ASSOCIATED WITH CITY PROGRAMS 
 

WHEREAS, the Kelso Municipal Code currently requires, as a condition 

precedent to certain licenses and permits, the applicant to obtain liability insurance for 

damages; and  

WHEREAS, for business licensing regulations, the insurance provisions are out of 

date and are not recommended at this time by the City’s insurance provider; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to remove insurance requirements for 

business licensing applications and to amend certain insurance provisions of the 

Municipal Code to update the insurance requirements;  

NOW, THEREFORE, 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KELSO DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. AMEND KMC 5.20.      That Chapter 5.20, Dance Halls, created by 

Ordinance 3023 and more particularly, KMC 5.20.120 is hereby amended to provide as follows: 

5.20.120 Indemnification. 
A. The licensee shall indemnify and hold the city harmless from any losses, claims, actions or 
damages suffered by any person or persons by reason of or resulting from any negligence of the 
licensee or its agents, employees or patrons or on account of any act or omission of the licensee 
in its exercise of its license or use or occupancy of the premises. In the event any suit or action is 
brought against the city, the licensee shall, upon notice of the commencement thereof, defend the 
same, at no cost and expense to the city, and promptly satisfy any final judgment adverse to the 
city or to the city and the licensee jointly; provided, that in the event the city determines that one 
or more principles of governmental or public law are involved, the city retains the right to 
participate in such action. The above liability shall not be diminished by the fact, if it be fact, that 
any such death, injury, damage, loss, cost or expense may have been, or may be alleged to have 
been, contributed to by the negligence of the city or its officers, employees or agents; provided, 
however, that nothing contained in this section shall be construed as requiring the licensee to 
indemnify the city against liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or damage 
to property caused by or resulting from the sole negligence of the city or its officers, employees 
or agents. 



 2 

B. 1. As a condition precedent to obtaining a license, the licensee shall, at no expense to the city, 
secure and maintain during the full term agreement, general comprehensive liability insurance 
issued by one or more companies authorized to do business in the state, which insurance  shall be 
subject to the approval of the city attorney as to company, form, coverage, and which insurance 
must fully protect the city from any and all claims and risks in connection with any activity 
performed by the licensee by virtue of this agreement and provide the following minimum 
coverage: 

a. One hundred thousand dollars per person, per occurrence; 

b. One million dollars annual aggregate; 

2. The policy must specifically name the city as an additional insured party thereunder in 
the following manner: 

“The City of Kelso is an additional insured for all coverages provided by this policy of insurance 
and shall be fully and completely protected by this policy and for any claim, suit, injury, death, 
damage or loss of any sort sustained by a person, organization or corporation in connection with 
any activity upon or use or occupancy of establishments regulated by this section.” 

“The coverage provided by this policy to the City or any other named insured shall not be 
terminated, reduced, or otherwise changed in any respect without providing at least thirty days 
prior written notice to the City Attorney.” 

C. The licensee shall deliver to the clerk-treasurer a copy of all policies required under this 
provision and all endorsements thereto or other evidence to the reasonable satisfaction of the city 
attorney that the licensee has secured or renewed and is maintaining insurance as required by this 
section. 

D. The procuring of the insurance required by this section shall not be construed to limit 
licensee's liability under this chapter. 

E. Licensee shall provide for the prompt and efficient handling of all claims for injury, death, 
damages or loss arising out of the acts or omissions of licensee during the term of this section. 

SECTION 2. AMEND KMC 5.40.      That Chapter 5.40, Merchant Patrols, Private 

Detectives and Private Security Operators, created by Ordinances 3008, 3036, 3563, and 3579 

and more particularly, KMC 5.40.020 is hereby amended to provide as follows: 

5.40.020 Business license—Required. 
A. It is unlawful for any person, partnership or corporation to engage in the private detective 
business or in the business of being a private security operator without being the holder of a valid 
and subsisting license, issued under the provisions of this chapter, to be designated as a security-
related business license. Every such license shall expire at the end of the calendar year in which 
the same is issued and shall be nontransferable; provided, however, only the business owner or 
operator shall be required to obtain such a license. 



 3 

B. In addition to the requirements of this section, a condition to the issuance of such license shall 
be that the applicant be licensed by the county and demonstrate that the insurance requirements 
required by the county are in full force and effect and that such coverage includes work 
performed within the city. In the event the applicant is not licensed by the county, such applicant 
shall obtain similar coverage applicable to the city and provide evidence of such at the time of 
application.  

SECTION 3. AMEND KMC 5.60.      That Chapter 5.60, Taxicabs, created by 

Ordinance 3016 and more particularly, KMC 5.60.030 is hereby amended to provide as follows: 

5.60.030 Vehicle—Licensing—Inspection and insurance. 
Every holder of a master taxicab license shall license each vehicle he operates pursuant to the 
following: 

A. Each such vehicle shall be subject to an annual licensing fee of ten dollars. 

B. Every holder of a master license shall before putting any vehicle into operation file with the 
clerk-treasurer a certificate of inspection showing that any such vehicle licensed pursuant to this 
chapter has been inspected by a reliable automotive concern approved by the chief of police and 
to be certified as safe for taxicab operation by the automotive concern. Each twelve months 
thereafter the vehicle must be reexamined by a reliable automotive concern and recertified as to 
safety of operation pursuant to the terms and conditions of this chapter. Every licensee shall, 
before commencing operation, file with the clerk-treasurer a liability and property damage 
insurance policy, issued by an insurance company authorized to do business in the state, 
providing for property damage insurance in a sum of not less than twenty-five thousand dollars 
and for personal liability insurance in a sum of not less than one hundred thousand dollars for the 
injury of one person and three hundred thousand dollars for the injuries resulting from any one 
accident. 

C. In addition to the inspections provided in this chapter, all vehicles operating under the 
authority of this chapter shall be available for inspection at any time and at any place by the chief 
of police who shall order any taxicab to cease operation immediately if, in his determination, the 
vehicle is in an unsafe condition, and shall notify the operator or driver in writing thereof. It is 
unlawful for any operator or driver to drive or operate any taxicab without complying with the 
certification and insurance procedures set forth in this section, or which is in an unsafe condition 
or without proper equipment, as determined by the chief of police. It is further unlawful to fail to 
comply to any written notice by the chief of police to make certain corrections on any taxicab.  

SECTION 4. AMEND KMC 6.04.      That Chapter 6.04, Animal Control, created by 

Ordinances 3310 and 3704 and more particularly, KMC 6.04.252 is hereby amended to provide 

as follows: 

6.04.252 Dangerous or potentially dangerous dogs—Compliance with state law required—
Registration—Fees. 



 4 

It is unlawful for any person to own or harbor a dangerous dog or potentially dangerous dog, 
except in conformance with Chapter 16.08 RCW, or as amended, and in conformance with this 
chapter. 

A. It is unlawful for an owner to have a dangerous or potentially dangerous dog in the city 
without a certificate of registration issued under this section. The registration fee for dangerous 
dogs shall be in addition to the registration and tag fees required in Section 6.04.040. This 
section shall not apply to dogs used by law enforcement officials for police work. 

B. The animal control authority shall issue a certificate of registration to the owner of a 
potentially dangerous dog upon payment of the annual registration fee of one hundred dollars if 
such registration occurs before July 1st, or fifty dollars if such registration occurs after July 1st. 

C. The animal control authority shall issue a certificate of registration to the owner of a 
dangerous dog if the owner presents to the animal control authority sufficient evidence of: 

1. A proper enclosure to confine a dangerous dog and the posting of the premises with a 
clearly visible warning sign that there is a dangerous dog on the property. In addition, the 
owner shall conspicuously display a sign that informs children of the presence of a 
dangerous dog. For purposes of this chapter, the term “proper enclosure” of a dangerous 
dog means, while on the owner’s property, a dangerous dog shall be securely confined 
indoors or in a securely closed and locked pen or structure suitable to prevent the dog from 
escaping, and shall also provide protection from the elements for the dog; 

2. One of the following: 

a. A surety bond issued by an insurer qualified under Chapter 48.28 RCW, in a form 
acceptable to the animal control authority, in the sum of at least two hundred fifty 
thousand dollars, payable to any person injured by the dangerous dog, or 

b. A policy of liability insurance , such as homeowner’s insurance or a comparable 
policy, issued by an insurera company authorized to do business in Washington, and  
qualified under RCW Title 48,  which insurance shall be subject to the approval of the 
city attorney and shall provide in the coverage in an amount of at least two hundred 
fifty thousand dollars, insuring the owner for any personal injuries inflicted by the 
dangerous dog;  The policy must specifically name the city as an additional insured 
party thereunder and provide that the policy shall not be terminated without providing 
at least thirty days prior written notice to the City.   

3. Payment of the annual registration fee of two hundred fifty dollars if such registration 
occurs before July 1st, or one hundred twenty-five dollars if such registration occurs after 
July 1st.  

SECTION 5. AMEND KMC 8.20.      That Chapter 8.20, Fireworks, created by 

Ordinance 3040 and more particularly, KMC 8.20.050 is hereby amended to provide as follows: 

8.20.050 Permit—Certificate of insurance coverage. 

http://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Kelso/html/Kelso06/Kelso0604.html#6.04.040


 5 

All applications for permits pursuant to this chapter shall be accompanied by a certificate of 
insurance coverage evidencing the carrying of a comprehensive general liability insurance 
policy, issued by a company authorized to do business in Washington, and shall provide  with a 
minimum coverage of five hundred thousand dollars and one million dollars for bodily injury 
liability for each person and eventper occurrence, respectively, and not less than five hundred 
thousandtwo million dollars annual aggregatefor property damage liability for each event. Such 
general liability policy shall name the city as an additional named insured party, must be in full 
force and effect for the duration of the permit, and shall include a provision prohibiting 
cancellation of said policy without thirty days' written notice to the city. The policy and 
certificate shall be in a form approved by the city attorney.  

 
 

 SECTION 6.  SEVERABILITY.  The provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be 

severable. If any provision, clause, sentence, or paragraph of this Ordinance or the application 

thereof to any person, establishment, or circumstances shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall 

not affect the other provisions or application of this Ordinance. 

 SECTION 7.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect 5 

days after its passage and publication of summary as required by law. 

  
ADOPTED by the City Council and SIGNED by the Mayor this ____ day of _______ 

___________, 2014. 

       ____________________________________ 
ATTEST/AUTHENTICATION:    MAYOR 
 
________________________________ 
CITY CLERK 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY 
PUBLISHED:_____________________ 
 


	1.  - Agenda 2014-04-15
	1.1. - 2014-04-01 Minutes
	2.1. - Mental Health Month 2014
	2.2. - National Library Week 2014
	3.1. -  Ag Sum  - HOME
	3.1.1. - KL HOME Legal Notice PH Projects 2014
	3.1.2. - HOME
	5.1. - AgSu - Closeout Salvage Yard Cleanup 4-15-14
	5.1.1. - Salvage Yard Closeout
	5.2. - AgSu - Closeout Sunrise Waterline 4-15-14
	5.2.1. - Sunrise Closeout
	7.1. - Ag Sum - Police Dept Vehicle Purchase 04092014
	7.2. - Ag Sum - Amnd No. 2 City Manager Employment Agreement 04152014
	7.2.1. - City Manager Employment Agreement Amendment 2 04152014
	7.2.2. - Attachment City Manager
	7.3. - Ag Sum - Longview Building Services
	7.3.1. - Longview Building Services - Planning Amnd 04152014
	8.1. -  Ag Sum
	8.1.1. -  Ordinance amending insurance provisions--jp changes 3-25-14
	5.20.120 Indemnification.
	5.40.020 Business license—Required.
	5.60.030 Vehicle—Licensing—Inspection and insurance.
	6.04.252 Dangerous or potentially dangerous dogs—Compliance with state law required—Registration—Fees.
	8.20.050 Permit—Certificate of insurance coverage.


